
 

Camberwell Community Council 
 
 

Wednesday 17 April 2013 
7.00 pm 

Employment Academy, 29 Peckham Road, London SE5 8UA 
 

Membership 
 

 

Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor The Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Eleanor Kelly 
Chief Executive 
Date: Tuesday 9 April 2013 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 
 

Item 
No. 

Title  

 

  
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 
 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 9) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 
February 2013. 
 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

 

 The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received. 
 

 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

7.05pm 

 - Chair’s announcements 
- Youth Carers Conference update 
 

 

8. CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER FUNDING  
 

7.15pm 

8.1. CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER CAPITAL FUND 2013/14 (Pages 
10 - 16) 

 

 

 Note: this is an executive function 
 
To consider applications for the CGS capital fund 2013/14. 
 

 

8.2. CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER REVENUE FUND 2013/14 
(Pages 17 - 23) 

 

 

 Note: this is an executive function 
 
To consider applications for the CGS revenue fund 2013/14. 
 

 

9. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS (Pages 24 - 32) 
 

7.30pm 

 Note: This is an executive function 
 
Councillors to consider the recommendations contained in the report. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

10. CRIME AND DISORDER STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT AND ROLLING 
PLAN  

 

7.35pm 

 Sarah Newton, Safer Southwark Partnership 
 

 

11. CONSULTATION ON HEALTH SERVICES IN THE DULWICH AREA  
 

7.45pm 

 Presentation by Rebecca Scott, Southwark NHS 
 

 

12. WELFARE REFORMS UPDATE  
 

7.55pm 

 Jay Daisi, Revenue & Benefits 
 

 

13. HOUSING COMMISSION  
 

8.05pm 

 Kevin Dykes, Community Engagement                                                         
 

 

14. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Page 33) 
 

8.35pm 

 A public question form is included at page 33. 
 
This is an opportunity for public questions to be addressed to the chair. 
Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the council has powers or duties. 
 
Responses may be supplied in writing following the meeting. 
 

 

15. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY  
 

8.40pm 

 Each community council may submit one question to a council assembly 
meeting that has previously been considered and noted by the community 
council. 
 
Any question to be submitted from a community council to council 
assembly should first be the subject of discussion at a community council 
meeting. The subject matter and question should be clearly noted in the 
community council’s minutes and thereafter the agreed question can be 
referred to the constitutional team. 
 
The community council is invited to consider if it wishes to submit a 
question to the ordinary meeting of council assembly in 10 July 2013. 
 

 

 OTHER REPORTS 
 

 

 The following items are also scheduled for consideration at this meeting: 
 

 

16. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) PROJECT BANK LIST  
 

7.25pm 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

  
NETWORKING SESSION WITH REFRESHMENTS PROVIDED - 
Following the end of formal business there will be the opportunity to meet 
and talk to councillors and officers. 
 

 

 
Date:  Tuesday 9 April 2013 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 7187 or 
email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7187.  
 
 

 



1 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

 
 
 
 

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Wednesday 13 February 
2013 at 7.00 pm at Heartbeat International, 3 - 15 Brisbane Street, Camberwell, 
London SE5 7NL  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor The Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 
OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

  
Edward James, Children’s and Adult’s Services 
Jo Skelton, Community Wardens Team Leader 
Paul Gellard, Transport and Projects Officer 
Sally Crew, Group Manager Policy and Programmes 
Pippa Krishnan, Parks & Open Spaces Development Officer 
Jessica Caruth, Project Manager 
Juliet Seymour, Planning Policy Manager 
Grace Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer 
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 The chair welcomed councillors, members of the public and officers to the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kevin Ahern and Stephen Govier. 
 

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

Agenda Item 5
1



2 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2012, be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the chair. 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) public consultation on the draft charging 
schedule was taking place. Councillor Peter John explained that it was a levy charged by 
the council on future developments in the borough. There would be different levels of 
charges across the borough. Consultation was ongoing and comments were welcome on 
the proposals put forward. 
 
Young Carers Conference 
The chair announced that on Saturday 23 February 2013, there would be a showcase 
event from 2pm – 6pm in the Camberwell leisure centre for young carers. The conference 
was an opportunity for young carers to meet and discuss their experiences and the 
opportunities available to local carers.  
 

8. COMMUNITY COUNCIL FUND 2013/14 
 

 

 Note: This is an executive function. 
 
Members considered the information in the report. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

1. That allocations of community council funding for the following applications be 
      approved:  
 
 Organisation     Project    Amount 
  
 St Georges Pop In   Dance Classes   £500 
 
 Friends of Brunswick Park  Brunswick Park Village  £1,000 

Fete 

2



3 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

 
 Lyndhurst School Association International Fashion Show £1,000 
 
 Bethwin Road Playground  Family Fun Day  £1,000 
  

Cooltan Arts    Largactyl shuffle  £999.95 
     community picnic 
 
Crawford Parents Forum   Black History Month   £1,000 
 
Walworth Golden Oldies   Cultural Summer Party £1,000 
 
Goshen TRA     Stay-Fit Goshen  £700 

 
 Southside Young   Camberwell Enterprise £997 
 Leaders Academy   Project  
 
 Southwark CAB   Home Search Support £870 
 
 Southwark Pensioners Centre Eye to IT   £1,000 
 
 Jummy Taribo    Young Minds   £450 
 
 Southwark Woodcraft   Children and Democracy  £1,000 
      In Action 
 
 Dog Kennel Hill Adventure  Project Fun Day  £380 
 Playground 
  
 4 in 10 Wellness    Project-Maudsley  £620 
 Project-SLAM  
 
 Camberwell Arts Festival   Arts Festival   £1,000 
 
 The Welcome Singers   The Welcome Singers £910 
 
 Elmington, Lettsom,   TRAs Big Film Week  £1,000 

Wilsons Road, Bessemer,  
Grange TRAs 
 
Stroke Care    Healthy Living Awareness £1,000 
     Workshops 
 
Mumtaz Banu     Eid Celebration  £459.30 
 
Southwark Explorers Club  Pensioners Exploring   £1,000 
 
Opi Alimi    Recognition Awards Night £200 
 
Burgess Sports   Burgess Park multi-sport £300 
     holiday programme 

3



4 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

 
2. That the under spend of £53.75 be considered at a future meeting in 2013/14. 

 

9. YOUTH RESTORATION FUND DECISION UPDATE 
 

 

 Edward James, Children’s and Adult’s Services, explained that the following four activity 
bids had been chosen by local young people to be put forward for funding: 
 

1. The Albion Youth Project, which provides educational support for young people. 
2. The Eye Child, which offers a structured holiday for young people at risk of 

offending. 
3. The Esteem Network, which provides advice on sexual health, relationships and 

unwanted teenage pregnancies. 
4. The Offbeat Liberty Development Enterprise Project, which runs an apprenticeship 

fair offering advice around jobs and careers. 
 

10. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATE 
 

 

 Safer Neighbourhood Teams 
Sergeant Tom Leach, Brunswick Park and South Camberwell Safer Neighbourhood 
Teams (SNT) gave the following updates for each ward: 
 
Camberwell Green 

• Officers had carried out two search warrants under drugs laws  
 
• Street drinking was targeted as part of an ongoing operation around Camberwell 

Green. The levels of street drinking had fallen. 
 

• There was a problem with drug dealing in the area, in particular around betting 
shops. Several anti-social behaviour orders had been issued which had to an 
extent reduced the problem. 

 
• Officers were working with housing associations to deal with the problems 

caused by dangerous dogs in housing blocks. Letters had been sent to affected 
residents about the progress being made. 

 
South Camberwell 

• Several arrests for conspiracy to supply drugs had been made since the last 
community council meeting. 

 
• Denmark Hill and surrounding estates had been targeted recently with the aim of 

reducing Anti-Social Behaviour. 
 
Brunswick Park 

• Fourteen arrests had been made since the last community council meeting. A 
drugs warrant was executed in January.  

 
• Officers had targeted anti-social behaviour on the Glebe Estate. Two males had 

recently been arrested for driving a stolen vehicle. 

4



5 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

 
• The SNT were providing support for funding streams for youth groups in 

Southwark. Successful funding bids had been secured for local scouts, the 
Carrot Club and Catch-22, amongst others.  

 
In response to questions, Sgt Leach made the following points: 
 

• Officers were working with the RSPCA on tackling a problem at a local premises 
where a nuisance dog tended to bark late into the night. 

 
• Local betting shops had been very co-operative with the SNT in tackling the 

problems that seemed to occur in and around their businesses. 
 
Community Wardens 
Jo Skelton, Community Wardens Team Leader, explained that the team was up to its full 
capacity of six wardens. The team was based at the new Queens Road offices in 
Peckham. Among the priority matters tackled during the last twelve weeks were: tackling 
anti-social behaviour, street drinking, begging, burglary and theft from school children. 
Wardens were aiming to get on the housing estates more often in future and welcomed 
community feedback on any issues. 
 
The wardens had been working with the housing department to visit vulnerable older 
people in the community. Additionally, they were still looking for more volunteer street 
leaders to help improve the local environment. 
 
In response to questions Jo made the following points: 
 

• Regarding business premises leaving bin bags on the pavement for five or six 
days, wardens could examine trade waste agreements and take enforcement 
action where necessary. 

 
• The wardens work with all the Tenants and Residents’ Associations (TRAs) in 

Camberwell and would attend TRA meetings when work schedules allowed. 
 

• Some specific enforcement work to tackle dog fouling on the East Dulwich Estate 
would be undertaken. 

 

11. PECKHAM ROAD SOUTH, CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE UPDATE 
 

 

 Paul Gellard, Transport and Projects Officer, summarised the report on the Peckham 
Road South, controlled parking zone (CPZ) consultation. Following a deputation at the 
Camberwell Community Council in April 2012 requesting a CPZ consultation, the council 
commissioned parking occupancy surveys in October 2012.  
 
More than 2,000 consultation packs were delivered in November to local residents. 
Consultation closed on 14 December 2012. 442 response questionnaires were returned 
along with 3 petitions. The petitions contained 598 signatures against controls in the area. 
Overall 77% of respondents were against parking controls in their street, with 17% in 
favour. 

 

5



6 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

Paul explained that all comments would be included in the report going to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Recycling:  
 
Members considered the information in the report. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the community council notes the report and supports the following 
recommendations due to be made to the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport and Recycling:  

 
1. Not to approve the implementation of a parking zone in any of the Peckham 

Road South study area. 
 

2. To approve the implementation of ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions (double  
yellow lines) on all unrestricted junctions where currently absent in the Peckham 
Road South study area. 

 

12. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS 
 

 

 Note: This is an executive function. 
  
Members considered the information in the report. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

That the following local parking amendments, detailed in the appendices to the report, 
be approved for implementation subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory 
procedures: 

 
• Baldwin Crescent – install one disabled person’s (blue badge) parking bay  
 
• Coleman Road – install one disabled person’s (blue badge) parking bay 
 
• East Dulwich Road – install one disabled person’s (blue badge) parking bay 

 
• Crofton Road – install one disabled person’s (blue badge) parking bay. 

 

13. REVITALISE5 CAMBERWELL 
 

 

 Sally Crew, Group Manager Policy and Programmes, introduced the Revitalise5 
Camberwell programme. It consisted of a number of different projects intended to make a 
real difference in the area. Consultation was under way and would run until 8 March 2013.  
 
Camberwell Green 
 
Pippa Krishnan, Parks & Open Spaces Development Officer, explained that the plan was 
to re-landscape the green. The space should work well with the surrounding area and act 
as a good connection with the new library. Officers were currently seeking residents’ 

6



7 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

comments on the three design options put forward, elements of each may feature in the 
final design. The new green would have more biodiversity. There would be new equipment 
in the play area and some railings may be removed to open up the park to visitors and 
reduce anti-social behaviour. The final design would be ready in May 2013 and would be 
subject to planning approval, before construction commenced. The new park should open 
in spring 2014. 
 
In response to questions, Pippa made the following points: 
 

• There would be consultation on the type of new equipment for the play area 
 
• The amount of long grass and wild flowers would be increased as it would improve 

the park’s biodiversity 
 
• There would be improved lighting in the park.  

 
A new library for Camberwell 
 
Jessica Caruth, Project Manager, explained that the new library would fit in with the other 
infrastructure improvements in the area. The library would be adjacent to the Green in 
front of the Magistrates Court. Views were sought on what to put in the new library. There 
would be more space for books and learning materials along with public toilets and baby 
changing facilities. It would have many computers for public use and free wifi. There would 
be a consistent approach with the Green and some seasonal variations. A planning 
application would be submitted in March 2013 with construction commencing later in the 
year, subject to approval, with completion likely in spring/summer 2014. 
 
In response to questions, Jessica made the following points: 
 

• There will be a civic square space between the Magistrates Court and the new 
library. The court had been involved in the process and a balance between historic 
and new would be achieved 

 
• Some of the existing trees would be re-located and there was a commitment to re-

planting. There would be more trees in the area around the Green. Some trees 
currently affecting the smooth walkways with their roots would be replaced. 

 
Streetscape improvements 
 
Sally Crew explained that the plans were a partnership project between Southwark 
Council, Transport for London, which manages Camberwell New Road and Camberwell 
Church Street and Lambeth Council, which looks after Coldharbour Lane and parts of 
Denmark Hill. There were two options being considered and both would introduce a 
20mph speed limit along with more space for pedestrians. Some bus stops would be 
adjusted or moved to improve access for passengers. Residents’ comments on the 
proposals were sought. Following consultation, the preferred option would be published 
and works should start in summer 2013.  
 
In response to questions, Sally made the following points: 
 

7



8 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

• There were two bus garages in the area that required bus stands and facilities to 
support passengers. The bus service issue had been considered and addressed in 
the options. 

 
Councillors added that a tube link would help the public transport situation in Camberwell 
and residents were urged to sign an online petition to that end. 
 
Pocket spaces 
 
Sally Crew explained that the pocket spaces project looked at some of the under- utilised, 
quiet spaces within Camberwell such as Grove Lane and Coldharbour passage. A site 
audit of the spaces in Camberwell had been carried out and priorities were set on 
improvements. Residents were now being asked if they agreed or disagreed with those 
priorities. After the consultation there would be a design process and residents would have 
an opportunity for input on those designs. 
 
Camberwell Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
 
Juliet Seymour, Planning Policy Manager, explained that the SPD was being prepared for 
the Camberwell area. The SPD was detailed guidance based in part on feedback from 
local residents. Officers were seeking views on the building designs, streets and spaces 
wanted by people in the area. The SPD covered affordable housing, retail and office space 
and would be finalised in 2014 with a draft available in September 2013. Consultation 
would run until 19 April 2013. Contact juliet.seymour@southwark.gov.uk or Tel. 020 7525 
0508. 
 
Sally Crew said that there were further Revitalise5 Camberwell events planned and 
residents were encouraged to give their views throughout the process.  
Contact sally.crew@southwark.gov.uk or Tel. 020 7525 5564. 
 

14. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

 

 There were two written questions submitted. One concerning double yellow lines on 
Talfourd Road and the other regarding lighting in council buildings.  
 
A written response would be forwarded by officers ahead of the next meeting.  
 

15. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY 
 

 

 Following the earlier discussions around the various projects taking place under the 
Revitalise5 Camberwell programme, the community council considered whether to submit 
a question to the next Council Assembly meeting and agreed  the following: 

 

RESOLVED:  
 

Please update Camberwell Community Council on the Council's work to lobby 
Transport for London to bring the Bakerloo line to Camberwell and onto Peckham. 

8



9 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

 

 The meeting ended at 8.40pm 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

9



 

 
 
 

  

 
Item No.  

8.1 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
17 April 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer 2013/14: Capital Funding 
Allocation 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within the Camberwell Community Council 
area 

From: 
 

Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2013-14 Cleaner Greener Safer 

(CGS) capital programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the 
list of applications set out in appendix 1. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
2. The Council’s CGS capital programme has been running since 2003. 
   
3. In the first ten years of the CGS programme, £26,633,000 has been allocated 

to community councils leading to 1,548 projects being approved.  
 
4. In the Camberwell Community Council area, £3,356,326 has been allocated to 

210 projects, 194 of which have been completed to date. 
 
5. For 2013/14, community councils have also been able to allocate CGS 

revenue and applications were invited for both capital and revenue ideas.  The 
allocation of revenue is dealt with by a separate report on this meeting’s 
agenda. 

 
6. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include: 
 

• Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas 
• Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks 
• Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot spots’ 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
7. There is £268,571 for the 2013/14 CGS capital programme and £12,880 

unallocated funding from previous years, giving an overall budget of £281,451 
for new projects in the Camberwell Community Council area. 

 
8. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an 

area cleaner, greener or safer.  
 
9. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries or computer equipment, 

feasibility studies, costs for events, festivals, workshops or other one-off events 
are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV proposals, internal improvements to 
housing property, works on schools where there is no access to the general 
public are also not eligible. Works on private property are not eligible unless 

Agenda Item 8.1
10



 

 
 
 

  

there is a long-term guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public 
benefit.  

 
10. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver 

projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both 
practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In 
such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the 
form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached. 

 
Policy implications 
 
11. The CGS programme is fully aligned with the council’s policies around 

sustainability, regeneration and community engagement. 
 
Community impact statement 
 
12. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 

involvement of local people in the democratic process and taking decision-
making closer to local people. Community councils take decisions on local 
matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as 
consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area. 

 
13. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 

engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The CGS programme is an 
important tool in achieving community participation. 

 
14. All ideas for CGS projects come directly from the local community via a simple 

project nomination form. Specific schemes will then be agreed by community 
councils and will reflect local needs and priorities. 

 
Resource implications 
 
15. The funding for the 2013/14 CGS capital programme was approved by the 

cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed in the 
launch of CGS Programme 2013/14 report dated September 2012. 

 
16. The under spends from previous years are detailed in CGS: Funding 

Reallocation report dated 21 November 2012. 
 
17. All professional fees related to the project are also allowed to be treated as the 

capital costs of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to 
organisations, the community council award letter will not include the 
professional fees which will be charged direct to project costs. 

 
18. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  Projects 

that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community 
council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. 

 
19. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the 

case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset owners. 
Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the Public Realm projects 
business unit as a result of approving the proposed allocation.  

11



 

 
 
 

  

 
Consultation  
 
20. All CGS projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project 

applicant, local residents, Tenants and Residents Associations and local 
community groups where appropriate. 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services  
 
20. This report is recommending that the Camberwell Community Council approve 

the allocation of funds to the individual projects specified at appendix 1.  The 
power for this function is derived from Part 3H paragraph 11 of the Constitution 
which states that community councils have the power of “Approval of the 
allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a 
local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet.”  

 
21. The Cabinet Member for Transport Environment and Recycling approved the 

funding for the 2013/2014 programme in September 2012 by exercising his 
powers under Part 3D paragraph 2 of the Constitution; and the community 
council approval being sought here is therefore the next constitutional step in the 
process. 

 
22. Community council Members also have powers under paragraph 12 of Part 3H 

of the Constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services  
 
23. This report recommends approval of the allocation of funds for the 2013/14 CGS 

programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the list of applications 
set out in appendix 1. 

 
24. The strategic director of finance and corporate services notes the resource 

implications contained within the report, and confirms that the capital funding for the 
CGS programme has been approved as part of the overall council capital 
programme. 

 
25. Officer time and any other costs connected with this recommendation will be 

contained within existing budgeted revenue resources. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2013/14 - 
September 2012 

http://moderngov.southw
ark.gov.uk/mgDelegated
Decisions.aspx?XXR=0&
&DR=06%2f02%2f2012-
20%2f02%2f2013&ACT=
Find&RP=0&K=0&V=0&
DM=314X&HD=0&DS=2
&Next=true&T=Cleaner

Michelle Normanly 
020 7525 0862 

12



 

 
 
 

  

%20Greener%20safer&
META=mgdelegateddeci
sions& 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding 
Reallocation 

http://moderngov.southw
ark.gov.uk/documents/g4
321/Public%20reports%2
0pack%20Wednesday%
2021-Nov-
2012%2019.00%20Cam
berwell%20Community%
20Council.pdf?T=10 
 

Michelle Normanly 
020 7525 0862 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Capital 

programme 2013/14: Applications 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 
Report Author Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager 

Version Final 
Dated 5 April 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 5 April 2013 
 
 
 

13



APPENDIX 1

Camberwell Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2013/14: Applications

Proposal Name Reference Ward
1-12 Rainbow St CGS Project5 168159 Brunswick Park
Continuing bike lane from Camberwell to Peckham 169034 Brunswick Park
Shrubbery planting on Elmington Road 171017 Brunswick Park

Metal railings on west side of picnic area, Brunswick Park 171442 Brunswick Park
Repaving of Mary Boast Walk 172443 Brunswick Park
Lucas Gardens new signage and noticeboards 172956 Brunswick Park
Brunswick Park Old English Rose Garden 172957 Brunswick Park
The Stanswood Gardens Project 1 173105 Brunswick Park
The Stanswood Gardens Project 2 173113 Brunswick Park
The Stanswood Gardens Project 3 173122 Brunswick Park

CoolTan Arts (CA) Largactyl Shuffle (LS) Community Bench 173171 Brunswick Park
Good Signs for Sceaux Gardens 173243 Brunswick Park
Community creation of two Bug / mini beast hotels, 
Brunswick Park. Volunteers will be taught about the 
creatures, their habitats and the wider ecosystem. The 
proposed area is ideal for the purpose. 173244 Brunswick Park
Planting and replacement of trees and shrubs around 
recycle centre on McNeil Road 173396 Brunswick Park
Children's mixed use playground exercise equipment on 
Glebe Estate 173601 Brunswick Park
Planting trees on Dagmar Road 173650 Brunswick Park
Pynners Close field Facelift Project 300114 Brunswick Park
Crawford Tenant Development Initiative - TRA hall 166901 Camberwell Green
School Entance at Comber Grove Primary School 167791 Camberwell Green
Green Bethwin 168829 Camberwell Green
Clean up Crown Street 168830 Camberwell Green
Benhill Road Nature Garden Pond 169490 Camberwell Green
An additional rubbish bin for Bowyers Place bus stop 171518 Camberwell Green
Community Garden revalitisation and engagement in a more 
healthy lifestyle 172318 Camberwell Green
Clever hiding of multiple wheelie bins on the street 172322 Camberwell Green
Security for Childcare at CASP 172731 Camberwell Green
Refurbishment of Joiners Yard 172736 Camberwell Green
De-littering Valmar Road 172805 Camberwell Green
Bell Bollards Valmar Road 172809 Camberwell Green
Courtyard Restoration 172841 Camberwell Green
Pavement restoration 172881 Camberwell Green
Bridge Painting and Murals 172882 Camberwell Green
Fruit Trees Grosvenor Terrace 172884 Camberwell Green
Community Tree Notice Boards 172886 Camberwell Green

14



APPENDIX 1

Camberwell Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2013/14: Applications

Proposal Name Reference Ward
Planting a living Christmas tree for the Estate's future 
generations 172887 Camberwell Green
Solar Panels for T&RA Hall 172888 Camberwell Green
Council beds replanting and revitalisation 172890 Camberwell Green
Secure bike storage 172893 Camberwell Green
Community Square and Traffic Calming 173374 Camberwell Green
Reinstallation of Red Traditional Telephone Box 173375 Camberwell Green
Restoration of metal railings to Victorian style 173380 Camberwell Green
New community bed and wildlife area 173385 Camberwell Green
T&RA Hall basement entrance 173388 Camberwell Green
Street plant pots 173392 Camberwell Green
Street tree beds 173395 Camberwell Green
Kickrails for beds in community park 173398 Camberwell Green
Childrens community park facilities refreshed 173403 Camberwell Green
Bin storage plinths for communal buildings 173410 Camberwell Green
Community Garden Planters 173411 Camberwell Green
Community notice boards 173412 Camberwell Green
Southwark Carers Rooftop Garden 173442 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - light in the dog pound 173457 Camberwell Green
HYC Emergency Lighting 173522 Camberwell Green
Friends of D'Eynsford and Datchelor Place residents 173593 Camberwell Green
Camberwell Subterranea at Aberfeldy House garages 173600 Camberwell Green
Community Improvements on Elmington Estate 300029 Camberwell Green
Update play area and trees 300041 Camberwell Green
Benches for Pensioners Garden 300042 Camberwell Green
Mobility Gardening Project 300052 Camberwell Green
Samuel Lewis Trust Playground 300051 Camberwell Green
Goschen Estate ballcourt/play area 300058 Camberwell Green
Goschen Estate Outdoor Gym 300059 Camberwell Green
Goschen Estate Anti-Social Behaviour works - Horsman 
House 300060 Camberwell Green
Goschen Estate Asbestos work 300061 Camberwell Green
Blue Elephant Footprints Street Lighting 300083 Camberwell Green
Safe and Secure 300119 Camberwell Green
Crawford Tenant Development Initiative - Playground 300091 Camberwell Green
Crawford Tenant Development Initiative - outdoor gym 300092 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - outdoor picnic areas x 2 300104 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - fencing 300105 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - football and basketball pitch 
and lights 300106 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - update the play area behind 
Laing and Grenfell House 300107 Camberwell Green
Updates to the Comber Estate - Comber House planting 300108 Camberwell Green

15



APPENDIX 1

Camberwell Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2013/14: Applications

Proposal Name Reference Ward

Hanging baskets for Camberwell 172794
Camberwell Green 
& Brunswick Park

Dylways Community Garden 163313 South Camberwell
Clean Inside Green Outside 165669 South Camberwell
Lighting the Southern end of Green Dale footpath 172014 South Camberwell
East Dulwich Estate Gym Equipment 173327 South Camberwell
Bessemer Grange Community Nature Garden 173356 South Camberwell
The Lettsom Zebra 173366 South Camberwell
The Monclar Road Oak 173488 South Camberwell
Mother Goose Nursery Community Wildlife Garden 173576 South Camberwell
The Denmark Hill Estates Ball court 173583 South Camberwell
Grove Park Tree Base Gardens 173598 South Camberwell
Scout hut development 173670 South Camberwell
Camberwell well 300040 South Camberwell
Planting on Wasteground at Muschamp Road SE15 300049 South Camberwell
Plant Troughs on Oglander Island 300050 South Camberwell
East Dulwich Estate Bike Lockers Project 300109 South Camberwell

16



 
 
 

  

 
Item No.  

8.2 
 
 

Classification 
Open 

Date:  
17 April 2013 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell  Community 
Council  

Report title: 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund 2013/14 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green and 
South Camberwell Wards 

From: 
 

Stephen Douglass, Head of Community Engagement 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. That the Camberwell Community Council allocates the £60,000 of the Cleaner, 

Greener, Safer (CGS) Revenue Fund 2013-14. The projects to be considered for 
allocation are set out in Appendix 1. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2. A CGS Fund 2013/14 consisting of £210,000 across the borough, with an allocation 

of £10,000 per ward, has been introduced as part of the budget strategy agreed at 
the council assembly meeting on the 29 February 2012. Also at that meeting it was 
agreed to allocate an additional £10,000 per ward making the total revenue fund 
available of £410,000 across the borough resulting in £20,000 per ward. 

 
3. The aim of this fund is to give community councils decision making powers over 

significant amounts of revenue funding that they can allocate to meet locally 
determined priorities. It is anticipated that the availability of the revenue fund will 
enhance and complement the effectiveness of the capital fund. 

 
4. On 1 March 2012 the Leader of the Council delegated the executive function to each 

community council to take the CGS revenue funding decisions in their areas.   
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
5. The community councils will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 

funding.  
 

a. Proposals that make an improvement to an area on the basis of making it 
cleaner, greener or safer or a combination. 

 
b. CGS applications from the capital round which were ruled out because they 

were revenue applications. 
 

c. The revenue fund could be used to meet the revenue costs associated with a 
CGS capital award. 

 
d. A community council may choose to allocate some or all of their revenue 

resources to their CGS capital allocations. 
 

Agenda Item 8.2
17



 
 
 

  

e. Subject to the availability of resources, the revenue fund may be used to buy 
services from the council. 

 
6. While the allocation is based on £20,000 per ward, a community council can, if it 

chooses, decide to aggregate all or part of the funding and spend more than 
£20,000 per ward.  

 
7. Community councils will be free to indicate whether they would like expenditure to 

be an ongoing commitment over more than one financial year or spending over a 
fixed timescale for a one-off project.  Commitments will be subject to final agreement 
of the council budget and a decision by each community council on an annual basis. 

 
8. As with any executive decision taken by community councils this is subject to the 

council’s existing scrutiny arrangements. 
 
Delivery  
 
9. Once the community council has made their selections by the method of their choice 

they will be designed and delivered as soon as possible in 2013/14. Any under 
spends or projected overspends will be reported back to community council for 
resolution or reallocation.  

 
Community Impact Statement 
 
10. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of involvement 

of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take decisions on 
local matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as 
consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area. 

 
11. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 

engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The CGS programme is an 
important tool in achieving community participation. 

 
12. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing together 

and involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to 
have due regard when taking decisions to the need to: 

 
a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct; 
 
b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it; 
 

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and 
those that do not share it. 

 
13. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 

and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.  
 

14. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined 
in section 149 of the Equality Act as having due regard to the need of: 

 

18



 
 
 

  

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic; 

 
b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic; 
 

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate in 
public life or any other activity in which they are under- represented. 

 
Resource implications 
 
15. The total cost of the CGS revenue fund is part of the budget process for 2013/14 

agreed by Council Assembly.  Any costs incurred in implementing this fund will be 
met within existing resources. 

 
Policy implications 
 
16. The CGS Revenue Fund is fully aligned with the Council’s policies toward 

sustainability, regeneration and community engagement. 
 

Consultation 
 
17. Decisions will reflect longstanding ward priorities and may be complementary to the 

decisions made in the CGS Capital fund allocation. In this first year of the scheme 
consultation took place at the community council meetings and is therefore now an 
integral part of the decision making process.   

 
Legal Implications 

 
18. The Local Government Act 2000 [as amended] ('the Act') gives the leader the power 

to delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the function. 
The allocation of the Cleaner, Greener, Safer revenue fund (CGS) is an executive 
function. 

 
19. Community councils are 'area committees' within the meaning of the Act and 

executive functions can be delegated to them by the leader. 
 
20. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the 

council’s equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report 
author has demonstrated how those duties have been considered in the body of the 
report at paragraphs 12, 13 and 14 in the Community Impact Statement. 

 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services  
 
21. Legal comments have been addressed under paragraphs 18, 19 and 20. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
 

  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

  Background Papers Held At Contact 
Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue 
IDM Report 
 
Budget Proposals 2012/13 
 

160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1P 5LX  
 
http://moderngov.southwa
rk.gov.uk/documents/s35
022/Report%20Policy%2
0and%20Resources%20
Strategy%20201314%20-
%20201516.pdf 
 

Forid Ahmed 
0207 525 5540 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council CGS revenue fund 2013/14 projects 

for consideration  

AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Forid Ahmed, Community Councils Coordinator 
Report Author Grace Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 

Version Final 
Dated 3 April 2013 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member                 No                   No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 4 April 2013 
 

20



APPENDIX 1

Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund 2013 proposals for consideration

Proposal Name Ward Location Idea Cost
Camberwell 
Scout Group

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park This proposal will enable the scout group 
members to integrate and learn different 
tasks in this social and recreational 
environment. To provide a 1 week summer 
camp and additional  activities

£2,000

Sceaux Gardens 
After School 
Project

Brunswick Park Sceaux Gardens This proposal would contribute towards the 
books and other activities for children from 
the estate to take part in after school 
activities

£500

IBA Charity Brunswick Park Vestry Road The proposal would support the next  
Camberwell Youth Conference for young 
people, including young carers. The first 
Conference was started by Councillor 
Gibbes and  held in February 2013 and was 
a success. To include 
venue,refreshments,transport for those 
requiring it and to ensure young people 
attend, and contributors. The Camberwell 
Youth Conference, will have proposals 
coming from the youths and therefore there 
must be funds to meet some of these 
proposals coming from the youth. 

£1,000

Elaine Josephs 
Summer Project

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park This project has been running for 2 years 
and provides daytime educational, arts and 
sports activities for children from the local 
estates. This allocation will allow them to 
expand their activities and reach more 
children.  It is planned for this to run in 
partnership with Sceaux Gardens TRA.

£1,000

Camberwell 
Youth and Young 
Carers 
Conference

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park The proposal would support the next  
Camberwell Youth Conference for young 
people, including young carers. The first 
Conference was started by Councillor 
Gibbes and  held in February 2013 and was 
a success. To include 
venue,refreshments,transport for those 
requiring it and to ensure young people 
attend, and contributors. The Camberwell 
Youth Conference, will have proposals 
coming from the youths and therefore there 
must be funds to meet some of these 
proposals coming from the youth.                                                                   
The funding includes money to support any 
proposal from the young people. There will 
be consultation with the Southwark Young 
Carers.

£5,000

21



APPENDIX 1

Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund 2013 proposals for consideration
Lettsom Estate 
Educational 
Activities

Brunswick Park Lettsom Estate This proposal would provide  educational 
activities  for the children on the estate.

£500

Friends Of 
Brunswick Park

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park This proposal is for a community planting 
project in Brunswick Park.

£500

The Stanswood 
Gardens Projects 
1 & 2

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park The proposal would support the delivery of 
the two Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue 
Projects. The proposal for Part 1 is to 
provide a greenhouse for seeding,planting 
and propogation. To create a platform and 
base to teach local residents how to grow 
plants and vegetables. The proposal for part 
2 is to provide workshops for local children 
for spring-summer gardening.

£1,581

Southwark Youth 
Council

Brunswick Park Brunswick Park The proposal is to a contribution to 
Southwark Youth Council {SYC}, part of 
Southwark Youth Services, for their 
manifesto pledge pertaining to international 
development work.  This group of 16 young 
people elected 18 months ago by their peer 
group are working on three themes: inter-
generational work with older people, crime 
and safety of young people and international 
development work with young people in 
South Africa.  The amount will be a 
contribution to this area of work.

£5,000

Youth Futures Camberwell 
Green

Camberwell Green The proposal is to contribute to their youth 
work in the Camberwell Green area. They 
are a charity and work with local, disaffected 
young boys and girls.  Work closely with 
Southwark Youth Services but are unfunded.  
The young people organised and staged an 
immensely successful showcase in March, 
which had over 100 young people in 
attendance as well as The Mayor, Local 
Councillors, Council Youth Workers and 
members of the Tenant and Residents 
Association.

£10,000

22



APPENDIX 1

Southwark Youth 
Council

Camberwell 
Green

Camberwell Green The proposal is to a contribution to 
Southwark Youth Council {SYC}, part of 
Southwark Youth Services, for their 
manifesto pledge pertaining to international 
development work.  This group of 16 young 
people elected 18 months ago by their peer 
group are working on three themes: inter-
generational work with older people, crime 
and safety of young people and international 
development work with young people in 
South Africa.  The amount will be a 
contribution to this area of work.

£10,000

23



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
Item No.  

9. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
17 April 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council 

Report title: 
 

Local parking amendments 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within Camberwell Community Council 

From: 
 

Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. It is recommended that the following local parking amendments, detailed in the 

appendices to this report, are approved for implementation subject to the 
outcome of any necessary statutory procedures: 

 
2. Baldwin Crescent – remove one permit bay and install a double yellow line to 

provide access to a planned new dropped kerb and vehicle crossover leading to 
No. 11. 

 
3. Grove Lane – remove one permit bay and install a double yellow line to provide 

access to a planned new dropped kerb and vehicle crossover leading to No. 165.  
 
4. Everthorpe Road - install double yellow lines at the junction of Oglander Road 

and Oxenford Street. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
5. This report presents recommendations for a number of local parking 

amendments.  
 
6. Part 3H of the Southwark Constitution delegates decision making for local non-

strategic traffic management matters to the community council. 
 
7. The origins and reasons for the recommendations are discussed within the key 

issues section of this report.  
 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Baldwin Crescent  
 
8. The council’s asset management team have received, considered and approved 

in principle (subject to this decision and statutory consultation) the construction of 
a dropped kerb and vehicle crossover leading to No. 11 Baldwin Crescent. 

  
9. The proposed crossover location currently has a permit holder’s only parking bay 

in front of it, this bay is part of Camberwell (K) Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ). 
 
10. It is not possible to maintain a parking bay and dropped kerb at the same location 

as the presence of both would provide a conflicting message to motorists. 
 
11. Officers are proposing to progress a local parking amendment such that the 

Agenda Item 9
24



 

 
 
 

 

  

parking bay is removed and a waiting restriction (double yellow line) is installed; 
this will result in the loss of approximately one parking space. 

 
12. Double yellow lines prohibit waiting (generally referred to as parking) ‘at any time’ 

however loading and unloading is permitted.   
 
13. It is noted that double yellow lines are now the council’s standard restriction for 

crossovers located within a parking zone. This is part of a wider objective to 
reduce sign clutter and to improve comprehension of restrictions at the point of 
parking. 

 
14. It is recommended, as shown in Appendix 1 that the bay marking outside No. 11 

is removed and 6 metres of double yellow line is installed. 
 
Grove Lane  
 
15. The council’s asset management team have received, considered and approved 

in principle (subject to this decision and statutory consultation) the construction of 
a dropped kerb and vehicle crossover leading to No. 165 Grove Lane. 

  
16. The proposed crossover location currently has a permit holder’s only parking bay 

in front of it, this bay is part of South Camberwell (L) Controlled Parking Zone 
(CPZ). 

 
17. It is not possible to maintain a parking bay and dropped kerb at the same location 

as the presence of both would provide a conflicting message to motorists. 
 
18. Officers are proposing to progress a local parking amendment such that the 

parking bay is removed and a waiting restriction (double yellow line) is installed; 
this will result in the loss of approximately two parking spaces. 

 
19. Two parking spaces are being lost because the proposed dropped kerb is due to 

be located at the northwest boundary line of the property.  One space could have 
been retained if the crossover was located at the southeastern boundary line 
however this would have required the relocation of a lamp column which is 
prohibitively costly. 

 
20. Double yellow lines prohibit waiting (generally referred to as parking) ‘at any time’ 

however loading and unloading is permitted.   
 
21. It is noted that double yellow lines are now the council’s standard restriction for 

crossovers located within a parking zone. This is part of a wider objective to 
reduce sign clutter and to improve comprehension of restrictions at the point of 
parking. 

   
22. It is recommended, as shown in Appendix 2 that the bay marking outside No.165 

is removed and 9.5 metres of double yellow line is installed. 
 
Everthorpe Road  
 
23. The council was contacted by the street leader asking that double yellow lines 

are installed at the junctions of Everthorpe Road and Oglander Road.  
 
24. The street leader stated at present the number of vehicles parking in Everthorpe 

25



 

 
 
 

 

  

Road has increased and he is concerned that they are parking close to the 
junction. 

 
25. At present Everthorpe Road is  uncontrolled and vehicles are parking to close to 

the junction mentioned above, on 26 March 2013, an officer carried out a site 
visit to this location and found vehicles were parked closer than 10 metres to the 
junction reducing the sight lines.  

 
26. The Highway Code1 makes clear that motorists must not park within 10 metres of 

a junction, unless in a designated bay.  However the council has no power to 
enforce this without the introduction of a traffic order and subsequent 
implementation of waiting restrictions (yellow lines).   

 
27. It is therefore recommended, as detailed in Appendix 3, that at any time waiting 

restrictions (double yellow lines) are introduced to protect sight lines and enable 
enforcement at the junctions of Everthorpe Road and Oglander Road. 

  
Policy implications 
 
28. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the 

polices of the Transport Plan 2011, particularly 
 

Policy 1.1 – pursue overall traffic reduction 
Policy 4.2 – create places that people can enjoy. 
Policy 8.1 – seek to reduce overall levels of private motor vehicle traffic on our 
streets 

 
Community impact statement 

 
29. The policies within the Transport Plan are upheld within this report have been 

subject to an Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
30. The recommendations are area based and therefore will have greatest affect 

upon those people living, working or traveling in the vicinity of the areas where 
the proposals are made. 

 
31. The introduction of blue badge parking gives direct benefit to disabled motorists, 

particularly to the individual who has applied for that bay. 
 
32. The introduction of yellow lines at junctions gives benefit to all road users through 

the improvement of inter-visibility and therefore road safety.   
 
33. There is a risk that new restrictions may cause parking to be displaced and, 

indirectly, have an adverse impact upon road users and neighboring properties at 
that location.  However this cannot be entirely preempted until the 
recommendations have been implemented and observed. 

 
34. With the exception of those benefits and risks identified above, the 

recommendations are not considered to have a disproportionate affect on any 
other community or group. 
 

35. The recommendations support the council’s equalities and human rights policies 

                                                 
1 Highway Code, rule 243 

26



 

 
 
 

 

  

and promote social inclusion by:  
 

• Providing improved parking facilities for blue badge (disabled) holders in 
proximity to their homes. 

• Providing improved access for key services such as emergency and refuge 
vehicles. 

• Improving road safety, in particular for vulnerable road users, on the public 
highway.  

 
Resource implications 

36. All costs arising from implementing the recommendations will be fully contained 
within the existing local parking amendment budget.  

 
Legal implications 
 
37. Traffic Management Orders would be made under powers contained within the 

Road Traffic Regulation Act (RTRA) 1984.  
 
38. Should the recommendations be approved the council will give notice of its 

intention to make a traffic order in accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic 
Order (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. 

 
39. These regulations also require the Council to consider any representations 

received as a result of publishing the draft order for a period of 21 days following 
publication of the draft order.  

 
40. Should any objections be received they must be properly considered in the light 

of administrative law principles, Human Rights law and the relevant statutory 
powers.  

 
41. By virtue of section 122, the Council must exercise its powers under the RTRA 

1984 so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.  

 
42. These powers must be exercised so far as practicable having regard to the 

following matters: 
 
a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises; 
 
b) the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and  
    restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity; 
 
c) the national air quality strategy; 
 
d) facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the safety and    
    convenience of their passengers; 
 
e) any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 

 
 
 
 

27



 

 
 
 

 

  

Consultation 
 
43. No informal (public) consultation has been carried out.  
 
44. Where consultation with stakeholders has been completed, this is described 

within the key issues section of the report. 
 
45. Should the community council approve the items, statutory consultation will take 

place as part of the making of the traffic management order. The process for 
statutory consultation is defined by national regulations. 

 
46. The council will place a proposal notice in proximity to the site location and also 

publish the notice in the Southwark News and the London Gazette.    
 
47. The notice and any associated documents and plans will also be made available 

for inspection on the council’s website or by appointment at its Tooley Street 
office. 

 
48. Any person wishing to comment upon or object to the proposed order will have 

21 days in which do so. 
 
49. Should an objection be made that officers are unable to informally resolve, this 

objection will be reported to the community council for determination, in 
accordance with the Southwark Constitution. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Transport Plan 2011 Southwark Council 

Environment and Leisure 
Public Realm projects 
Parking design 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH 

Online: 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/20
0107/transport_policy/1947/southwa
rk_transport_plan_2011  

Tim Walker  
020 7525 2021 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Baldwin Crescent – at any time waiting restriction (double yellow 

lines) outside No.11  
Appendix 2 Grove Lane – at any time waiting restriction (double yellow lines) 

outside No.165  
Appendix 3 Everthorpe Road – at any time waiting restriction (double yellow 

lines) junctions of Everthorpe Road  and Oglander Road  

28



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Head of Public Realm - Des Waters 
Report Author Tim Walker, Senior Engineer  

Version Final 
Dated 8 April 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services No No 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services 

No No 

Cabinet Member          No           No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 April 2013 
 

29



APPENDIX 130



APPENDIX 231



APPENDIX 332



 
                          Camberwell Community Council 

 
Public Question form 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give this form to Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer, or Grace 
Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 14
33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank 
 



  
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2012-13 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team (Community Councils) all amendments/queries 
  to Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187 
 
 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 
 
To all Members of the Community Council 
 
Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair)                  
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice Chair)                     
Councillor Kevin Ahern                                               
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John                                                 
Councillor The Right Revd Emmanuel 
Oyewole                 
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                              
Councillor Veronica Ward                                           
Councillor Mark Williams 
 
 
External 
 
 
Press 
 
Southwark News 
South London Press 
 
Members of Parliament 
 
Tessa Jowell, MP 
 
Officers 
 
Constitutional Officer (Community 
Councils) 2nd Floor Hub 4, 160 Tooley St.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Borough Commander  
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL 
 
 
 
Others 
Elizabeth Olive, Audit Commission 
160 Tooley St. 
 
 
 
Total: 
 
Dated:  5 February 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
64 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	
	5 Minutes
	8.1 CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER CAPITAL FUND 2013/14
	Appendix 1 CGS capital applications

	8.2 CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER REVENUE FUND 2013/14
	Appendix 1 CGS Revenue 2013-14

	9 LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	14 Public Question Time
	
	

